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May 4, 2022 

 

Danielle Boudreaux 

Florida Department of Revenue 

Building One, Room 2600 

2450 Shumard Oak Blvd. 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0100 

 

Attention: Janet Young 

 

Dear Danielle Boudreaux: 

 

Your adoption package for Rules 12-24.001 and .003, F.A.C. was received, electronically, by the Florida 

Department of State, Administrative Code and Register at 3:00 p.m. on May 3, 2022. After review, it 

appears that the package meets statutory requirements and those of Rule 1-1.010, F.A.C. and is deemed 

filed for adoption at the time received, as indicated above. The effective date is May 23, 2022.  

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Anya C. Owens 

Program Administrator 

 

ACO/mas 
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Swain, Margaret A.

From: Danielle Boudreaux <Danielle.Boudreaux@floridarevenue.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 3, 2022 3:00 PM
To: RuleAdoptions
Cc: Owens, Anya C.; Janet Young; Jennifer Ensley; Tonya Fulford
Subject: RE: Department of Revenue Rule Certification Packets
Attachments: 12-13_Certification Packet_050322.pdf; 12-24_Certification Packet_050322.pdf; 12-29

_Certification Packet_050322.pdf; 12A-16_Certification Packet_050322.pdf; 12A-19
_Certification Packet_050322.pdf; 12B-4_Certification Packet_050322.pdf; 12B-5
_Certification Packet_050322.pdf; 12B-7_Certification Packet_050322.pdf; 12B-8
_Certification Packet_050322.pdf; 12C-1_Certification Packet_050322.pdf

EMAIL RECEIVED FROM EXTERNAL SOURCE 

The attachments/links in this message have been scanned by Proofpoint. 

Good afternoon, 
 
Attached are the updated certification packets with the corrected agency certification form. 
 
Thank you, 
 

 

 

Danielle Boudreaux 
Revenue Program Administrator, Rulemaking and 
Legislative Analysis 
Technical Assistance and Dispute Resolution 
Florida Department of Revenue 
(850) 717-7082 
danielle.boudreaux@floridarevenue.com  
[unsecure] 

 
 

From: RuleAdoptions <RuleAdoptions@Dos.myflorida.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, May 3, 2022 11:43 AM 
To: Danielle Boudreaux <Danielle.Boudreaux@floridarevenue.com> 
Cc: Owens, Anya C. <Anya.Owens@dos.myflorida.com> 
Subject: RE: Department of Revenue Rule Certification Packets 
 
Good morning Danielle,  
 
Our office is in receipt of your adoption filings for the 10 Department of Revenue Rule Chapters. Upon further review, 
however, it appears that the Agency Certification page for each adoption is not the current effective version found in 1‐
1.010. The updated version took effect May 16, 2021 and removes the line that reads, “Attached are the original and 
two copies of each rule covered by this certification.”  
 
Updated filing procedures: 
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ruleNo.asp?id=1‐1.010  
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ruleNo.asp?id=1‐1.013  
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Please update the adoptions with the current version of the Agency Certification and the re‐submit your filings for 
processing.  
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
Margaret Swain 
Government Operations Consultant III 
Florida Administrative Code and Register 
Room 701 The Capitol | Tallahassee, Florida 
(850)245‐6208 
 
 

From: Danielle Boudreaux <Danielle.Boudreaux@floridarevenue.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, May 3, 2022 11:02 AM 
To: RuleAdoptions <RuleAdoptions@Dos.myflorida.com> 
Cc: Janet Young <Janet.Young@floridarevenue.com>; Jennifer Ensley <Jennifer.Ensley@floridarevenue.com>; Tonya 
Fulford <Tonya.Fulford@floridarevenue.com> 
Subject: Department of Revenue Rule Certification Packets 
 

EMAIL RECEIVED FROM EXTERNAL SOURCE 

The attachments/links in this message have been scanned by Proofpoint. 

Good morning, 
 
Please find attached the certification packets for 10 Department of Revenue Rule chapters. 
 
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

 
 

NOTIFICATION TO RECIPIENTS: The subject line of this email may indicate that this email has been sent 
unsecure. This is a default setting which in no way indicates that this communication is unsafe, but rather that 
the email has been sent unencrypted in clear text form. Revenue does provide secure email exchange. Please 
contact us if you need to exchange confidential information electronically. 
 
If you have received this email in error, please notify us immediately by return email. If you receive a Florida 
Department of Revenue communication that contains personal or confidential information, and you are not the 
intended recipient, you are prohibited from using the information in any way. All record of any such 
communication (electronic or otherwise) should be destroyed in its entirety.  
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Cautions on corresponding with Revenue by email: Under Florida law, emails received by a state agency are 
public records. Both the message and the email address it was sent from (excepting any information that is 
exempt from disclosure under state law) may be released in response to a public records request. 

Internet email is not secure and may be viewed by someone other than the person you send it to. Please do not 
include your social security number, federal employer identification number, or other sensitive information in 
an email to us. 

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



 
 

May 3, 2022 
 

Ms. Anya Owens, Chief 
Florida Department of State 
R.A. Gray Building, Mail Station 22 
500 S. Bronough Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399‐0250 
 
Re:  Certification of Department of Revenue Rules 
 
Dear Ms. Owens: 
 
The following Department of Revenue Rules are presented for certification: 
 

12‐24.001  Scope of Rules 
12‐24.003  Requirements to File or to Pay Taxes by Electronic Means 
 

The following persons may be contacted regarding these rule certifications: 
 

Danielle Boudreaux  717‐7082  danielle.boudreaux@floridarevenue.com 
Jennifer Ensley  717‐7659  jennifer.ensley@floridarevenue.com 

 
Florida Department of Revenue  
Building One, Room 2600 
2450 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399‐0100 

 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Janet Young 
Agency Rules Coordinator 
 
Attachments 









 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 

CHAPTER 12-24, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 

PAYMENT OF TAXES AND SUBMISSION OF RETURNS BY ELECTRONIC MEANS; TAXPAYER 

RECORDKEEPING AND RETENTION REQUIREMENTS 

AMENDING RULES 12-24.001 and 12-24.003 

 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED RULES 

The proposed revision to Rule 12-24.001 adds a statutory reference related to the remittance of tax by 

marketplace providers and persons required to remit sales tax on remote sales and is consistent with emergency rule 

12ER21-5. The proposed amendment to Rule 12-24.003 adds marketplace providers and persons required to collect 

tax on remote sales to the list of dealers who are required to file sales tax returns and remit tax electronically under 

section 212.11(4)(f), F.S., and is consistent with emergency rule 12ER21-6. 

 

FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES JUSTIFYING PROPOSED RULES 

The purpose of this rulemaking is to update the Department’s rules on the payment of taxes and submission 

of returns by electronic means to address 2021 legislative changes contained in Chapter 2021-2, Laws of Florida. 

Section 10 of the chapter law amends Section 212.11, Florida Statutes, to require a marketplace provider that is a 

dealer and a person who is required to collect and remit sales tax on remote sales to file returns and pay taxes by 

electronic means. Rules 12-24.001 and 12-24.003 are amended to reflect these provisions. 

 

FEDERAL COMPARISON STATEMENT 

The provisions contained in these rules do not conflict with comparable federal laws, policies, or standards. 

 

SUMMARY OF RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP 

September 23, 2021 

A Notice of Rule Development was published in the Florida Administrative Register on September 9, 2021 

(Vol. 47, No. 175, pp. 4121-4122), to advise the public of the proposed changes to Rules 12-24.001 and 12-24.003, 



 

F.A.C., and to provide that, if requested in writing, a rule development workshop would be held. A rule development 

workshop was requested and held on September 23, 2021. No comments were received at the workshop regarding 

these rules, and no written comments were received. 

 

SUMMARY OF PUBLIC MEETING 

March 29, 2022 

The Governor and Cabinet, sitting as head of the Department of Revenue, met on March 29, 2022, and 

approved the publication of the Notice of Proposed Rule for changes to Rules 12-24.001 and 12-24.003, F.A.C., as 

well as approval to file and certify the rules with the Secretary of State pursuant to s. 120.54(3)(e)1., F.S., if the 

substance of the proposed rules remain unchanged upon reaching the date applicable to filing for final adoption 

pursuant to s. 120.54(3)(e)2., F.S. A notice for the public meeting was published in the Florida Administrative 

Register on March 18, 2022 (Vol. 48, No. 54, p. 1045). 

 

SUMMARY OF RULE HEARING 

April 21, 2022 

A Notice of Proposed Rule was published in the Florida Administrative Register on March 31, 2022 (Vol. 

48, No. 63, pp. 1208-1209), to advise the public of the proposed changes to Rules 12-24.001 and 12-24.003, F.A.C., 

and to provide that, if requested in writing, a rule hearing would be held on April 21, 2022. No request was received, 

and no hearing was held. No written comments were received by the Department.  
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STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 

CHAPTER 12-24, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 

PAYMENT OF TAXES AND SUBMISSION OF RETURNS BY ELECTRONIC MEANS;  

TAXPAYER RECORDKEEPING AND RETENTION REQUIREMENTS 

AMENDING RULES 12-24.001 and 12-24.003 

 

12-24.001 Scope of Rules. 

Part I of this rule chapter sets forth the rules to be used by the Department of Revenue in the administration of 

Sections 202.30, 206.485, 212.11(4)(f), 213.755, and 220.21(2) and (3), F.S., authorizing the Executive Director to 

require taxpayers specified by statute or rule to pay taxes and fees and to file tax returns by electronic means. Part I 

of this rule chapter also sets forth the rules to be used by the Department in administering Section 443.163, F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 202.26(3)(a), 206.485(1), 213.06(1), 213.755(8), (9), 220.21(2), (3), 443.1317, 443.163(1) 

FS. Law Implemented 202.30, 206.485, 212.11(4)(f), 213.755, 220.21(2), (3), 443.163 FS. History–New 12-19-89, 

Amended 10-24-96, 4-30-02, 10-5-03, 6-1-09, 2-17-15, 11-12-20, 05-23-22. 

 

12-24.003 Requirements to File or to Pay Taxes by Electronic Means. 

(1) through (2) No change 

(3) The following dealers must timely file Florida sales and use tax returns and remit sales tax and discretionary 

sales surtax to the Department by electronic means. 

(a) A marketplace provider that is a dealer under Chapter 212, F.S. 

(b) A person who is required to collect and remit sales tax on remote sales. 

(3) through (5) renumbered (4) through (6) No change  

Rulemaking Authority 202.26(3)(a), 206.485(1), 213.06(1), 213.755(8), (9), 220.21(2), (3), 443.1317, 443.163(1) 

FS. Law Implemented 202.30, 206.485, 212.11(4)(f), 213.755, 220.21(2), (3), 443.163 FS. History–New 12-19-89, 

Amended 1-8-91, 11-17-93, 4-30-02, 10-5-03, 6-1-09, 6-28-10, 2-17-15, 11-12-20, 05-23-22. 


